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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF HAWAII

HAZEL BROWN BARTHOLOMA and | Civ. No. 18-00044 IMSRLP
JOEY MENDONCA individually and on

behalf of others similarly situated, ORDER ADOPTING FINDINGS
AND RECOMMENDATION, AND
Plaintiffs, REMANDING ACTION TO THE
CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIRST
VS. CIRCUIT, STATE OF HAWAII

MARRIOTT BUSINESS SERVICES
ETAL,,

Defendants.

ORDER ADOPTING FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION, AN D
REMANDING ACTION TO THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIRST
CIRCUIT, STATE OF HAWAII

l. INTRODUCTION

DefendantdMarriott Business Services, Marriott International, Inc.,
and Essex House Condominium Corporation (collectively, “Defendants”) object
under 28 U.S.C. §36b)(1) and Local Rule 72.4 to an April 18, 20di8dings
and Recommendation of Magistrate JuByehad L. Puglisito Grant Plaintiffs’
Motion to Remand (the “April 18&R”). ECF No.17. The April 18F&R

recommended that the court remand this action to the Circuit Court of the First
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Circuit, State of Hawaii (“State Court”) becaudefendantsremovalof this action
was untimely.Specifically, it determined th&tlaintiffs’ Third Motion for Class
Certification, filed November 6, 201#jggered28 U.S.C. 81446(b)3), which
required Defendants to remove the actiafithin 30 days aftereceipt by the
defendant through service or otherwise, of a copy of an amended pleading,
motion, order or other paper from which it may first be ascertained that the case is
one which is or has become removablArid, because Defendants remowed
February 1, 2018yell past this thirtyday window, the April 18 F&R concluded
that the removal was untimely and thesommended that this caserbenanded
to State Court.

Upon de novo review, the court agrees that the filing of the Third
Motion for Class Certificatiomvas a motion from which Defendant could first
ascertairthat Plaintifs werealleging among other requirements amount in
controversyin excess of $&illion such that the case wHsensubject to removal
under the Class Action Fairness Act (“CAFA’Accordingly, the court
OVERRULES the objections, ADOPTS the April E&R, and REMANDS the

action to State Court.



. BACKGROUND

A.  State Court Proceedings

Plaintiffs filed a First Amended Complaint (“FAC”) in State Conmt
March 8, 2016.ECF No.5+4. It alleges that Plaintiffs were employed by
Defendantst the Marriott’'s Kauai Beach Club work on banquets and other food
and beverage service evenld. {1 5, 14. It further claims thaDefendants
wrongfully withheldfrom Plaintiffsa servcefee paid by the hotel's customéos
Defendants Id. § 14. This conduct, according to the FAC, was in violation of
Hawaii Revised Statutes (“HRS”) 88 48118, 4802, and 388, and “Plaintiffs
and other members of the proposed class are entitlegble tamages in
accordance with HRS Section 488(a)’ Id. 1 15, 19.Plaintiffs filed their Third
Motion for Class Certification on November 6, 20EHCF No. 63.
B. Federal Court Proceedings

On February 1, 2018, Defendants removed the case twotnis
asserting CAFA jurisdiction. ECF No. 1. Plaintiffs filed a Motion to Remand on
March 2, 2018, Defendants filed @pposition on March 15, 2018, and Plaintiffs
filed aReply on March 29, 2018. ECF Nos. 10, 13, and 15.

After the April 18 F&R ganted Plaintiffs’ Motion to Reman&CF

No. 16, Defendants filed Objections on May 2, 2018, and Plaintiffs filed a



Response to the Objections on May 16, 20B8F Nos. 1& 19. The court
determines this matter without a hearing pursuant to LocalR2(d).

lll. STANDARD OF REVIEW

When a party objects enmagistrate judgs’findingsor
recommendatias) the district court must review de novo those portions to which
the objections are made and “may accept, reject, or modify, in whole or in part, th
findings or recommendations made by the magistrate judzelJ.S.C.
8636(b)(1);see also United States v. Raddd#7 U.S. 667, 673 (198Q)nited
States v. Reyra@apia 328 F.3d 1114, 1121 (9th Cir. 2003) (en banc) (“[T]he
district judge must reviethe magistrate judge findings and recommendations de
novoif objection is madebut not otherwise.”).

Under a de novo standard, this court reviews “the matter anew, the
same as if it had not been heard before, and as if no decision previously had been
rendered.”Freeman v. DirecTV, Inc457 F.3d 1001, 1004 (9th Cir. 2006)ited
States v. Silverma®61 F.2d 571, 576 (9th Cir. 1988Jhe district court need not
hold a de novo hearing; however, it is the cauobligation to arrive at its own
independent conclusion about those portions of the magistrate’ gitigeings or
recommendation to which a party objecdtited States v. Remsig7/4 F.2d 614,

618 (9th Cir. 1989).



V. DISCUSSION

The sole issue before the court is whether Plaintiffs’ Third Motion for
Class Certification triggered § 1446(b)(3ifsrty-day removal clock. Plaintiffs
argue that the February 1, 2018 removal to this court was untimely because
Defendants were placed anticesufficientto trigger removal based on their Third
Motion for Class Certification, filed on November 6, 2017. Defendants, in turn,
claim that the Third Motion for Class Certification did not provide them sufficient
notice that the aggregate amoumtontroversy equals or exceeds $5 millidrhe
court first sets forth the legal principles that applC#&FA remo\al, and then
addressethe timeliness of Defendantemoval to federal court
A. Removal Under CAFA

CAFA permit defendants to remove class actions to federal court
whenthree requirementre met1) aminimal diversity of citizenship between the
parties;2) the proposed class must have at least 100 member3) tred

aggregated amount in controversy must equal or exceed the sum or value of $5

! Plaintiffs also claimed below that discovery from April and October, 2017 placed
Defendants on sufficient notice to trigger § 1446(b)(8)igy-day removal period. Magistrate
Judge Puglisi found that these disclosures did not trigger an obligation to remove, andhthat rul
has not been challenged. The court thus focuses solely on whether the November 6, 2017 Third
Motion for Class Certification triggered the thitay window to remove.



million.? 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)Jordan v. Nationstar Mortg. LL781 F.3d 1178,
1182 (9th Cir. 2015)Unlike other removal statutetie court applies no
presumption againsemovalin CAFA cases Dart Cherokee Basin Operating
Co., LLC v. Owensl35 SCt. 547, 554 (2014).

The removal statute, 28 U.S.C. § 1446, provides two tHaty
windows during which a case may be removEdist, a CAFA defendant must
remove a caswithin thirty days of the service of the complaint that is removable
on its face.28 U.S.C. § 144&Kuxhausen v. BMW Fin. Servs. NA LIAO7 F.3d
1136, 1139 (9th Cir. 2013) But if the initial pleading does not trigger removal, “
notice of removal may be filed within 30 days after receipt by the defendant,
through service or otherwise, of a copy of an amended pleading, motion, order or
other paper from which it may first be ascertained that the case is one which is or
has become removable28 U.S.C§ 1446(b)(3)* Thissecond thirtyday window
under 81446(b)(3) “requires a paper that shows a ground for removal that was

previously unknowable or unavailableChan Healthcare Grp., PS v. Liberty Mut.

2 Defendants do not dispute that they were on sufficietite that Plaintiffs alleged
minimal diversity of citizenship and a proposed class of at least 100 members

¥ These two time periods are not exclusive. Thus, “as long as the complaint or ‘an
amended pleading, motion, order or other paper’ doesexeal that the case is removable, the
30-day time period never starts to run and the defendant may remove at anyReae:”
Michaels Stores Ing742 F.3d 1234, 1238 (9th Cir. 2014).



Fire Ins. Co, 844 F.3d 1133, 1142 (9th Ch017). And if removal becomes
ascertainable by the filing of an amended pleading, motion, order, or other paper, it
“will trigger the thirty-day removal period, during which defendant must either file

a notice of removal or lose the right to removBRdth v. CHA Hollywood Med.

Ctr., L.P, 720 F.3d 1121, 1126 (9th Cir. 2013)

“[D] efendants need not make extrapolations or engage in guesswork
to determine if a case is removabkuxhausen707 F.3dat 1140.No
independent investigation is requirdastead,the statutenly “requires a
defendant to apply a reasonable amount of intelligence in ascertaining
removability” Id. (quotingWhitaker v. Am. Telecasting, In@€61 F.3d 196, 206
(2d Cir.2001). Thus, courts will notcharge defendants with notice of
removability until [they have] received a paper that gives them enough information
to remove.”ld. at1141 (quotindourham v. Lockheed Martin Corpt45 F.3d
1247, 1251 (9th Cir. 200B)

“The amount in controversy is simply an estimate of the total amount
in dispute, not a prospective assessment of defelsdatility.” Lewis v. Verizon
Commchs, Inc, 627 F.3d 395, 400 (9th Cir. 201@)ting McPhail v. Deere &

Co., 529 F.3d 947, 956 (10th CR008) (“The amount in controversy is not proof

of the amount the plaintiff will recoveRather, it is an estimate of the amount that



will be put at issue in the course of the litigatig)).5ee alsdHenry v. Cent.
Freight Lines, Ing 692 F. Appx 806 807 (9th Cir. 2017)
B. Defendants Removal Was Untimely

To understand Plaintiffs’ allegations and the request sought by the
Third Motion for Class Certificatiorthe courtffirst ses forth some background
regarding HRS § 4814, the statute at the center of this case. The court then
addresses the allegatianghe FAC andThird Motion for Class Certificatiorgnd
whether those allegationsnderstood in relation to § 481B, triggered the 30
day period to removender § 1446(b)(3)

1. HRS §481B-14

HRS 8§ 481B14 requires that any hotel or restaurant that applies a
“service charge” for the sale of food or beveragigall distribute the service
charge directly to its employees as tip income or clearly disclose to the purchaser
of the serviceshat the service charge is being used to pay for costs or expenses

other than wages and tips of employées.

* Defendants claim that “removability must be contained withénfolur corners of the
document that plaintiff claims establishes removabilityd thus the court cannot look beyond
the Third Motion for Class Certification. Objs. at 13. The court rejects this anguamnel
considers in this order bothe FAC and theThird Motion for Class Certificatioto determine if
the filing of the Third Motion for Class Certification triggered the second tHagyperiod. See
Harris v. Bankers Life and Ca€.o., 425 F.3d 689, 69@®thCir. 2005) (finding removal timely
under the second thiriyay time period by considering the allegations of diversity in the original
complaint in conjuation with a letter written by counsel approximately ten months later).



In Kawakami v. Kahala Hotel Investors, LLC34 Haw. 351, 341
P.3d 558 (2014 )the Hawaii Supreme Couwtetermined that “for the purposes of
erforcement under Hawaii’'s UDAP and UMOC provisions . . . the phrase ‘wages
and tipslof employeek. . . mean[s] ‘tip income,’ rather than ‘wagesld. at 358,
341 P.2d at 564.And it held that “a hotel or restaurant that applies a service
charge for food or beverage services must either distribute the service charge
directly as tip income to the nananagement employees who provided the food or
beverage services, or disclose to its customers that the service charges are not
being distributed as tip incomeld. at 354, 341 P.3d at 566ee alsdawakami v.
Kahala Hotel InvestorsLC, No. SCWGC11-0000594, 2018 WL 3197543, at31
(June 29, 2018)

The court based its holding on its previous decision that §-481iB
“primarily focused on the problem of the ‘uninformed consumer, who may not
leave additional tips for the service employees, mistakenly thinking that the service
charge . . . paid [constituted] tipsKkawakamj 134 Hawat 360, 341 P.2d at 566
(quotingGurrobat v. HTH Corp 133 Haw. 1, 7, 323 P.3d 792, 808 (2014)). And

it distinguished its holding iWillon v. Marriott Hotel Services, Inc130 Haw.

> Under HRS § 480-2lUDAP” refers to an unfair or deceptive act or practice in the
conduct of trade or commercehile “UMOC” refersto an unfair method of competition.
PlaintiffS FAC makes a claim under 8§ 480-2, and seeks treble damages under § 48x4&¢a)
on a violation of § 480-2.



130, 306 P.3d 175 (2013), whicrsaid was “expressly limited to the meaning of
‘compensation earned’ under HRS § 388 Id. at 359, 341 P.3d at 565. Finally,

it described the harm to employees as the “depriv[ation] of the extra income they
would have earned had the hotel distributedehtirety of the service charge as

‘tip income.” Id. at 360, 341 P.3d at 566.

2. Analysis

The court first address&efendantsobjection “to the conclusion
rejecting Defendants’ argument that they did not know that the $2.2 million in
service charge paid to the class employees as wages discussed in Plaintiffs’ Third
Motion to Class Certification would form the basis of plaintiffs’ claims for
damages.” Olsjat 8. In ruling on this objection, the court considers the
allegations in the FAC and the Third Motion for Class Certification.

The FAC sets forth the basic theory of Plaintiffidim for damages
underg§ 480B14 — thatDefendants 1) charged customers a service feefailid
to clearlydisclose to these customers that a portion of the service charge was not
distributed to the employeésit instead was retained by Defendants; and 3) no
portion of the srvice fee wagaid o the employees as tip income&AC {{ 1415.

The FAC then alleges that “[ijn the absence of the required disclosures to

customersall suchservice charges were payabidull to the employees who

10



rendered the servidel that Defendarst “failed to pg theentire service charge to
said employeesand that the “wrongfully withheld service charges” are subject to
treble damages under HRS § 4B® Id. 1Y 1819 (emphass added) Thus, the
FAC sets forth in plain language the basis for an awadawiages— because
Defendants faddto comply with HRS § 4804, “all” or “the entire” service
charges aréayable in full” o the employeeas tip income.

The Third Motion for Class Certificatiatnenset forth the following
in support of its requestr class certificatioh

e HRS 8481B-14 provides hotels with a binary choice.
Either pay all the service chargenies to workers as tip
income or clearly disclose that it is being used for
something elseHere, Defendants did neither.
Defendants verified that the bulk of ftdisclosure’

when usedincluded the following languad&

minimum of 17% [varied up to 22% during class period]
Is allocated to wages and tips for our employkes.
Despite this, Defedants verified answers to
interrogatories and HRCP Rule 30(b)(6) swdeponents
have all testified that none of theinimunt service

® Plaintiffs sought certification of the following class:

All past and present non-management employees of the Hotel who,
on or after January 21, 2010, provided services in connection with
the sale of food and/or beverages at the Hotel for which a service
charge or gratuitgharge was (a) imposed by the Hotel without a
clear disclosure to customers that (b) less than 100% of the service
charge or gratuity charge would be distributed to said
nonmanagement employees.

ECF No. 63 atPagelD# 900.

11



charges are paid to igsnployees as tipContrary to its
“disclosure”,Defendants allocatedall service charges
to employee wages.Defendants’ undisclosed use of
service charges to pay employee wages is an express
violation of HRS § 481Rl4.

e Interestingly enough, during this time period, a total
of $2.2M serviceeharge payments were allocated to
employee wages under the guisétgds’ to these 122
banquet and room service employees when in fact they
were instead allocated to offset wages.

e |tis undisputed Defendants failed to provide the
entiretyof the service charges they imposed and
collected to the foodnd beverage service employees.
Defendants testified that they failed to distribarg tip
income to its service employetgoughout the class
period and instead used the service charge monies to pay
employee wagewithout disclosure and in violation of
HRS § 48B-14. This resounding violation of law is
common to the entire clasSimilarly, the question of
damages is common to the entire classsamgly
apportioned according to law and the Defendgmasroll
records of the 122 servieeployees which they concede
that they‘allocated $2.2M in service charge wages
disguised astips’ clearly establishes predominance.

ECF No. 63 at PagdD # 901, 902, 903, 907
The Third Motion for Class Certificatiathusclarifies Plaintiff's

theorythat 8481B-14 offers a“binary choice”— to either payall the service

" Of course, because Plaintiffs made clear in their FAC that they sougjetdemages
under HRS § 480-13, the $2.2 million would be multiplied by three (for a total of $6.6 million in
controversy).

12



charge collected as tips or follow the statute’s required discldsutréDefendants
did neither.” Id. at PagelD # 902. That is, the Third Motion for Class Certification
states, without wglification, thatDefendants paid no tip income to the employees,
and lied intheir disclosure tdheir customers that the service charge was paid to
employees as tips and wages, when in fact all service charges were used to offset
wages. The disclosurevas thus ineffective under § 48118, and the entire $2.2
million was required to be paid as tip income to the employ&esording to this
theoryof damagesas a result of the failure to “clearly disclose,” ungd81B-14,
the entire $2.2 million shodlhave been paid #p income

Plaintiff’'s theory does not require guesswork, conjecture, or
investigation by Defendantdnstead, after a reading of the FAC and Third Motion
for Class Certification, Defendardg&dn’t even need pen and paperdetermne
the amount in controversy- instead, they simply had to multipB2.2 million by
three (treble damages) to determinat theamount in controversyas $6.6
million.

Defendants also object to the April 18 R& conclusion that “Hawaii
law is clear that employees must distribute 100% of the service charge to their
employees as tip income.” April 18 F&R at 8. But the law is cledclearly

disclosé that the service charge is used for something other than tips, or pay 100%

13



of the service charge as tip incom&urrobat 133 Haw.at18, 323 P.3@t 809

(“the plain language of HRS § 4814 required Defendants to either distribute
onehundred percent of the service charge to employedgpascome or discbse

their retention of a portion of the service charge to custdmefgain, Plaintiffs’
theory for recovery ithat100% of the tip income (meaning 100% of the $2.2
million) had to be paid to the employdescause Defendants provided a false
disclosure And the FAC makes equally clear that the measure of damages is “the
wrongfully withheld service charggsncluding “treble damages” under HRS
480-13. FAC at 1 19.

Defendantsremaining arguments confuse their defense to the
damages sought by Plaintiff with the removal standard applied by the court. For
instance, Defendants claim that damages should be limited to the portion of service
charge retained by the Defendants without a disclosure.. &1j8. Maybe so.

But to determine the amount in controversy, the court doesn’t make a “prospective
assessment of defendant’s liabifity_ewis 627 F.3d at 4Q0Likewise,
Defendantspotential defense that federal law requires them to treat the service
charge as wages for FICA purposes is not relevant to the amount in controversy.

The court thus concludes thhaefiling of the November 6, 2017

Third Motion for ClasCertification triggered section 1446)(3)'s thirty-day

14



clock DefendantsFebruary 1, 2018 movalis thusuntimely.

V. CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, the court ADOPTSAlpeil 18, 2018 F&R.
The objectionare OVERRULED. The action is REMANDED the State Court,
and ay pendingdeadlinesn federal courare vacated

IT IS SO ORDERED.

DATED: Honolulu, HawaiiJuly 10, 2018

s Dis
nTESRISTR
P g R,

% /s/ J. Michael Seabright
J. Michael Seabright
Chief United States District Judge
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